
CITY COUNCIL BUSINESS MEETING AGENDA 

BUSINESS MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET, DAPHNE, AL 

                                                                        FEBRUARY 6, 2012 

6:30 P.M.                                                                           

 
 1.  CALL TO ORDER 

 2.  ROLL CALL/INVOCATION / PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE       

 

3.  APPROVE MINUTES:     Council meeting minutes / January 17, 1012 

                                                  Amended Minutes /  January 3, 2012  /  NO ACTION 

 

PROCLAMATION:   Arbor Day/ February 25, 2012 

 

PRESENTATION:  Adam McDonald  / Eagle Scout Project 

 

PRESENTATION:  Drew Williams / Update on Completed Eagle Scout Project 

 

PRESENTATION:   Dr. Barry Booth / Honor Flight Update 

 

                                               

4. REPORT STANDING COMMITTEES: 
    A.  FINANCE COMMITTEE / Boulware             

    B.  BUILDINGS & PROPERTY COMMITTEE -  Lake                  

 C.  PUBLIC SAFETY COMMITTEE –   Boulware     

          Review minutes / January 11
th 

     

    D.  CODE ENFORCEMENT/ORDINANCE COMMITTEE  -  Reese  

          Review minutes / January 11
th
            

 

    E.  PUBLIC WORKS COMMITTEE / SOLID WASTE AUTHORITY  - Conaway   

          Review Beautification minutes / January 6
th
  

 

5. REPORTS OF SPECIAL BOARDS & COMMISSIONS:  

    A.  Board of Zoning Adjustments – Jones  

    B.  Downtown Redevelopment Authority – Barnette      

          Review minutes / January 23
rd

    

 

    C.  Industrial Development Board –  Conaway    
          Review minutes / January 23

rd
  

      

    D.  Library Board – Lake   

           Review minutes / November 3, 2011 

           Review minutes / December 1, 2011 

           Review minutes / January 6, 2012    

 

  E.  Planning Commission – Barnette  
          Review minutes / December 15, 2011 

          Set a Public Hearing date for March 5, 2012 to consider Revisions to the Zoning Map and Annexation of   

          Woodrow Lane Right-of-Way  

  

   F.  Recreation Board – Reese        

    G.  Utility Board - Scott   

          Review minutes / January 4
th
 (December Mtg.) 

 

 

 

 
1



 

CITY COUNCIL AGENDA                         FEBRUARY 6, 2012                               PAGE  2 

 

 

6.  REPORTS OF OFFICERS: 

     A.  Mayor’s Report    
           a.)  Parade Permit / S.E.E.D.S. 8

th
 Annual Classic Rock 5K & 1 Mile Fun Run / March 3, 2012 

           b.)  Parade Permit / Prodisee Pantry / Annual 5K & 1 Mile Fun Run / October 27, 2012 

           c.)  Parade Permit / Arthritis Foundation / Jingle Bell Run / 5K & 1 Mile / December 1, 2012 

           d.)  ABC License / Champys Famous Fried Chicken / 020 Restaurant Retail Liquor 

           e.)  MOTION:  Authorize the Mayor to enter into an agreement with Syntergy, LLC / Energy Plan  

 

     B.  City Attorney’s Report  

C. Department Head Comments    

 

 

7. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION:    

 

8. RESOLUTIONS & ORDINANCES: 

 

a.)  Support for House Resolution 367 & Senate Bill 301 / 

      to Recognize the Month of October Each Year as  

      Italian and Italian American Heritage Month. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . /Resolution 2012-04 

 

b.)  Revisions to City Street Map. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . /Resolution 2012-05 

 

 

                     

  ORDINANCES: 

 

        2
ND

  READ 

a.)   Appropriation of Funds: FEMA Hazard Mitigation Grant Program: 

       / 140 Lakeview Loop. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . /Ordinance 2012-02 

            

b.)  Appropriation of Funds: City Hall HVAC / Fire Alarm Repair. . . . . . . . . . . . . . ./Ordinance 2012-04 

 

c.)  Community Contributions: USS Alabama Battleship Memorial Park  . . . . . . . . ./Ordinance 2012-05 

 

 

 

       1
ST

 READ 

d.)   Amend Personnel Handbook / Transitional Duty. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . /Ordinance 2012-01 

 

e.)   Establish Protocol for the Appropriation of Funding for  

       Outside Agencies  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . /Ordinance 2012-06 

 

f.)   Amend Ordinance 2008-16 / Council Salary / Option A. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . /Ordinance 2012-07 

 

g.)   Amend Ordinance 2008-16 / Council Salary / Option B. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . /Ordinance 2012-08 

 

h.)   Amend Ordinance 2008-16 / Council Salary / Option C. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ./Ordinance 2012-09 

 

i.)    Amend Ordinance 2008-17 / Mayor Salary. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . /Ordinance 2012-10 

 

 

9. COUNCIL COMMENTS                   

10.  ADJOURN 

2



CITY OF DAPHNE 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

 

ROLL CALL 

 

 

CITY COUNCIL:                                         CALL  VOTES   
 

COUNCILWOMAN CONAWAY               PRESENT       ABSENT            

 

COUNCILWOMAN BARNETTE    PRESENT       ABSENT            

 

COUNCILMAN LAKE   PRESENT       ABSENT            

 

COUNCILMAN REESE   PRESENT       ABSENT            

 

COUNCILMAN SCOTT   PRESENT       ABSENT            

 

COUNCIMAN BOULWARE     PRESENT       ABSENT            

 

COUNCILMAN PALUMBO   PRESENT       ABSENT         

    

MAYOR 

 

MAYOR YELDING    PRESENT       ABSENT            

 

CITY CLERK: 

 

DAVID L. COHEN                 PRESENT___    ABSENT___ 

 

CITY ATTORNEY: 
 

CITY ATTORNEY JAY ROSS  PRESENT       ABSENT    

 

 

MINUTE NOTES: 

 

 

                                                             

 

                                                             

 

                                                             

 

                                                             

 

3



                                                             

 

                                                             

 

                                                             

 

 

      CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

MINUTES 

 

NOTES: 

 

                                                                    

                                                                    

                                                                    

                                                                    

                                                                    

                                                                   

 

COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATIONS 

 

                                                                    

                                                                    

                                                                    

                                                                    

                                                                    

                                                                    

                                                                    

                                                                    

                                                                                                             

4



JANUARY 17, 2012 

REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING                                   

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

 

1.   CALL TO ORDER 

Council President Barnette called the meeting to order at 6:30 p.m. 

 

2.    ROLL CALL/INVOCATION/PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

Invocation was given by Councilwoman Conaway. 

 

COUNCIL MEMBERS PRESENT: Tommie Conaway; Cathy Barnette; John Lake; Kelly Reese; Ron 

Scott; Derek Boulware; August Palumbo. 

 

Also present: David Cohen, City Clerk; Rebecca Hayes, Assistant City Clerk; Jay Ross, City Attorney 

Adrienne Jones, Planning Director; David Carpenter, Police Chief; James White, Fire Chief; Richard 

Johnson, Publics Works Director; Tonja Young, Library Director; Margaret Thigpen, Civic Center 

Director; Christine Ciancetta, Deputy Finance Director; Ashley Campbell, Environmental Programs 

Manager; Jane Ellis, Mayor’s Assistant; Officer Ben Mitchel, Police Department; Al Guarisco, Village 

Point Foundation; Willie Robison, BZA. 

 

Absent: Mayor Yelding; Kim Briley, Finance Director; Vickie Hinman, Human Resources Director; 

Richard Merchant, Building Official; David McKelroy, Recreation Director;. 

 

3.  APPROVE MINUTES 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Boulware to amend the January 3, 2012 Council meeting minutes 

under the vote for Ordinance 2011-82 regarding the Nay vote changing it to Boulware instead of 

Reese and adopt.  Seconded by Councilman Boulware.  

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR             NAY    NONE OPPOSED             MOTION CARRIED                                           

                            

 

 

MOTION BY Councilwoman Conaway to adopt the January 10, 2012 Work Session minutes.  

Seconded by Councilman Reese. 

 

AYE    Conaway, Lake, Reese, Barnette                             ABSTAIN    Scott, Boulware, Palumbo 

 

                                    NAY    NONE OPPOSED             MOTION CARRIED 

 

 

 

4. REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEES: 

   A.  FINANCE COMMITTEE – Boulware 

The minutes for the January 9
th
 meeting are in the packet. 

 

 

 

5



JANUARY 17, 2012  

REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING                                                       

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

2 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Boulware to accept the Treasurers Report as of December 31, 2011, in 

the amount of $19,961,251.77.    Seconded by Councilman Scott. 

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR             NAY    NONE OPPOSED             MOTION CARRIED 

 

 

Sales and Use Taxes: November 30, 2011 

 

Sales and Use Tax Collected for November 2011    -   $845,164 

Sales and Use Tax Budgeted for November 2011    -   $836,995             

Over Budget (for November)                                    -    $   8,169 

 

YTD Budget Collections Variance – Over Budget - $55,632  

 

Lodging Tax Collections, November 2011  

 

The Lodging Tax Collections report shows $47,568 collected for November, 2011. 

 

 

B. BUILDINGS AND PROPERTY COMMITTEE – Lake 

No report. 

 

C. PUBLIC SAFETY COMMITTEE – Boulware 

The minutes for the December 14, 2011 meeting are in the packet. 

 

D. CODE ENFORCEMENT/ORDINANCE COMMITTEE –  Boulware 

The Transitional Duty ordinance was referred back to the committee for review to see if it would be 

advisable to have an appeal process built within it, and they discussed it at some length, and determined 

that given the fact that this is in respect to grant of an administrative leave beyond the 180 days or MMI 

under the transitional duty policy, and they decided that since it was discretionary, and that an appeal 

process would be largely superfluous because of the kind of review that would have to be undertaken for 

denial of discretionary leave, and also because if they built in an appeal process it might send a message 

that there may be some due process issue with the denial of administrative leave, and so there is no 

recommendation from the committee to change that provision of the ordinance.  The policy has been 

posted as required, and he supposed that the ordinance would come back onto the next agenda.  They 

also discussed the sewer tap issue, but it is a misnomer now because an ordinance has been drafted that 

will come before council that, basically, says there will be no waivers.  If sewer runs in a such a way that 

it abuts a citizens property, and they have access to it then they will be required to hook up to sewer. 

 

E. PUBLIC WORKS COMMITTEE/SOLID WASTE AUTHORITY – Conaway 

The committee met this afternoon, and the minutes will be in the next packet. 

 

 

 

6



JANUARY 17, 2012  

REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING                                                       

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

3 

 

5.   REPORTS OF SPECIAL BOARDS & COMMISSIONS: 

A. Board of Zoning Adjustments – Adrienne Jones 

No report.   The board did not meet in January, and there will not be a meeting in February. 

 

B. Downtown Redevelopment Authority – Barnette 

The next meeting will be next Monday at 5:30 p.m. 

 

C. Industrial Development Board – Conaway 

The board will meet on January 23
rd

 at 6:00 p.m. Councilwoman Conaway gave the floor to Mr. Joe 

Davis who is an IDB board member.  He thanked the council for their support of the Industrial 

Development Board.  He gave a status report on a project where they did some rent assistance.  They 

are attending Workshops and are on committees determining what they may be able to attract to the 

area in Baldwin County and particularly the Eastern Shore.  Their focus is on jobs and career creation 

and expansion.  They are going to be in touch with existing businesses, and talk about how the IDB 

might be able to help them.  He will do a site inventory of public and private sites available in Daphne 

that could match up with some of these company’s needs.  They will bring an update quarterly to 

report their progress. 

 

D. Library Board – Lake 

Councilman Lake read for the record a letter from the Library Director for the Town of Magnolia 

Springs thanking the city for the donation of the Library book drop boxes.  The letter is spread out 

upon these minutes: 

 

Dear Daphne Public Library Director, Mayor Fred Small and Daphne City 

Council, 

On behalf of the Board of the Magnolia Springs Public Library, as well as 

our patrons, we wish to thank you for your generosity to us.  We are 

overjoyed to have received the Daphne Public Library former book drop 

which will soon be an asset to us. Having been open for only two months we 

at the Library know how essential a book drop is.  With our still limited 

hours this drop will make all the difference to our patrons.  This will offer 

them convenience, as well as, saving them gas as they might otherwise drop 

the books elsewhere.  To take the time and consideration to think of us means 

so much.  We will put a notation on the book drop that it has been donated to 

us by the Town of Daphne.  Again we are forever grateful to you. 

 

Sincerely, 

 

Alida F. Givens, 

Library Director 

 

Councilman Lake stated that the Lincoln exhibit was wonderful. 

 

 

 

7



JANUARY 17, 2012  

REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING                                                       

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

4 

 

E. Planning Commission – Adrienne Jones 

The Site Review meeting is tomorrow, and the regular Planning Commission meeting is next Thursday at 

5:00 p.m. 

 

F. Recreation Board - Reese 

Councilman Scott stated that he had a conversation with Mr. McKelroy and he said that they had a 

drawing of an entrance way to the 115 acres that the city has behind Wal-Mart, and the preliminary is 

showing all playground area and skateboard areas, and they are anxious for the city to start doing 

something where they can get the project off the ground.  Mr. Cohen has indicated that if they can get 

a road in there they would have a better opportunity for grants. 

 

Council President Barnette stated since they have a design they can ask Mr. Johnson to help work on a 

cost for the road. 

 

Councilman Scott stated that Mr. McKelroy told him that there are two large soccer tournaments that 

are coming this month.  One has about 50 teams, and a third or more will be from out of town.  He 

thinks that giving Recreation part of the lodging tax has worked out well, because they really do 

generate money from the recreational activities that help fill the hotels. 

 

G. Utility Board – Scott 

The board met the first week in January for their December meeting. The next meeting will be January 

25
th
 at 5:00 p.m. in the council chambers. 

 

 

6.  REPORTS OF THE OFFICERS: 

    A.  Mayor’s Report 

No report. 

 

    B.  City Attorney Report 

No report.  He would like council to adjourn into Executive Session at the end of the meeting to 

discuss pending litigation.  The session should take no longer than 15 minutes.  

 

C. Department Head Comments 

Christine Ciancetta – Deputy Finance Director – reported that she is working on creating the RFP for 

Bond refinancing, that HR & Finance are working on 2011 W-2's, and the first Credit Card processing 

institution made a presentation last week with other institution presentations scheduled in the future. 

 

David Carpenter – Police Chief – reported that they made several arrests out of Mobile regarding the 

home burglaries over Christmas.  They also solved the burglary of the FBI agent’s home with a group 

out of Mobile being responsible. 

 

Tonja Young – Library Director – reported that the Lincoln event was a success.  She stated that if the 

city has any extra money they would like to expand their meeting room, because they had their first 

scholar to speak, and the room would not hold everybody. 

 

8



JANUARY 17, 2012  

REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING                                                       

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

5 

 

David Cohen – City Clerk - reported that he met with a company to have them review the sound 

system, and asked for a proposal of the cost to fix the existing system, and also upgrading the 

microphones and redoing the entire system. 

 

Council President Barnette stated that she wanted Mr. Cohen to report on this, because of the 

complaints they have been getting, and she wants the citizens to know they are not ignoring them. 

 

 

7. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION 

No one spoke. 
 

8.   RESOLUTIONS, ORDINANCES, ORDERS AND OTHER BUSINESS 

 

      RESOLUTIONS: 

 

a.)  Declaring Certain Personal Property Surplus. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ./Resolution 2012-01 

 

b.)  Declaring Certain Personal Property Surplus and 

       Authorizing Disposition / Donation. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . /Resolution 2012-02 

 

c.)  Prepaid Travel / David Cohen. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ./Resolution 2012-03 
 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Boulware to waive the reading of Resolutions 2012-01, 2012-02 and 

2012-03.  Seconded by Councilman Scott. 

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR             NAY    NONE OPPOSED             MOTION CARRIED 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Boulware to adopt Resolution 2012-01.  Seconded by Councilman 

Scott. 

 

AYE    Conaway, Reese, Scott, Boulware, Palumbo, Barnette                        NAY    Lake 

 

                                                              MOTION CARRIED 
 

MOTION BY Councilman Boulware to adopt Resolution 2012-02.  Seconded by Councilwoman 

Conaway. 

 

AYE    Conaway, Reese, Scott, Boulware, Palumbo, Barnette                          NAY    Lake 

 

                                                             MOTION CARRIED 
 

 

9



JANUARY 17, 2012  

REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING                                                       

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

6 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Boulware to adopt Resolution 2012-03.  Seconded by Councilman Scott. 

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR             NAY    NONE OPPOSED             MOTION CARRIED 

 

 

 

  ORDINANCES: 

 

        1
ST

 READ 

a.)   Appropriation of Funds: FEMA Hazard Mitigation Grant Program: 

       / 140 Lakeview Loop . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . /Ordinance 2012-02 

            

b.)  Appropriation of Funds: Fire Engine #3 Repair . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ./Ordinance 2012-03 

  

c.)  Appropriation of Funds: City Hall HVAC / Fire Alarm Repair. . . . . . . . . . . /Ordinance 2012-04 

 

d.)  Community Contributions: USS Alabama Battleship Memorial Park  . . . . ./Ordinance 2012-05 

 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Boulware to suspend the rules to consider Ordinance 2012-03.  Seconded by 

Councilman Lake. 

 

ROLL CALL VOTE 

 

Conaway Aye     Boulware   Aye 

Lake Aye     Palumbo   Aye 

Reese Aye     Barnette   Aye 

Scott Aye 

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR             NAY    NONE OPPOSED             MOTION CARRIED 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Boulware to waive the reading of Ordinance 2012-03.  Seconded by 

Councilman Lake. 

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR             NAY    NONE OPPOSED             MOTION CARRIED 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Boulware to adopt Ordinance 2011-03.  Seconded by Councilman Lake. 

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR             NAY    NONE OPPOSED             MOTION CARRIED                                                                        

 

 

Ordinances 2012-02, 2012-04 and 2012-05 were made 1
st
 Read. 

 

 
 

 

 
10



JANUARY 17, 2012  

REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING                                                       

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

7 

 

8. COUNCIL COMMENTS 
Mrs. Conaway thanked Ms. Young for inviting them to the Lincoln exhibit. 

 
Councilman Lake stated the he was glad that they had a facility where they could have the Lincoln exhibit, and he 

spoke regarding the heavy use of the Library.  He thanked Ms. Young for making it a success.  

 
Councilman Scott spoke regarding suspending the rules to consider ordinances stating that 2012-03 was a prime 

example of when to suspend the rules.  That is a true emergency. 

 

 

9. ADJOURN 

 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Scott to adjourn into Executive Session to discuss pending litigation.  Seconded by 

Councilman Boulware. 

 

The City Attorney certified that the foregoing stated reason was acceptable according to the Open Meetings 

Act. 

 

ROLL CALL VOTE 

 

Conaway  Aye     Boulware  Aye 

Lake   Aye     Palumbo  Aye 

Reese   Aye     Barnette  Aye 

Scott   Aye 

 

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR             NAY    NONE OPPOSED             MOTION CARRIED 

 

 

There being no further business to discuss the meeting adjourned at 7:15 p.m. 

 

 

Respectfully submitted by,    

                         

                             
________________________________                                                                         

David L. Cohen,        
City Clerk, MMC                 

                                                            Certification by Presiding Officer:       

 
 

       ________________________________                                                                              

       Cathy S. Barnette, 

       Council President  

11



JANUARY 3, 2012 

REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING                    Amended Minutes from the                               

1705 MAIN STREET                                                     January 17, 2012 Council Meeting 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

 
d.)  Main Street-McAdams to Bayfront: Mill & Overlay Road 

      Project: Design Engineering. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . /Ordinance 2011-87 

 

e.)   Well Road Extension: Design Engineering . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . /Ordinance 2011-88 

 

f.)    Appropriation of Funds: Daphne Museum/Cemetery  

        Video System & Monthly Monitoring Service . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ./Ordinance 2011-89 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Palumbo to waive the reading of Ordinances 2011-82, 2011-85, 2011-

86, 2011-87, 2011-88 and 2011-89.  Seconded by Councilman Scott. 

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR             NAY    NONE OPPOSED             MOTION CARRIED 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Palumbo to adopt Ordinance 2011-82.  Seconded by Councilman Lake. 

 

AYE    Conaway, Lake, Reese , Scott, Palumbo, Barnette                   NAY    Boulware      
 

                                                                       MOTION CARRIED 
 

MOTION By Councilman Palumbo to adopt Ordinance 2011-85.  Seconded by Councilman Scott. 

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR             NAY    NONE OPPOSED             MOTION CARRIED 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Palumbo to adopt Ordinance 2011-86.  Seconded by Councilman Lake. 

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR             NAY    NONE OPPOSED             MOTION CARRIED 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Palumbo to adopt Ordinance 2011-87.  Seconded by Councilman Lake. 

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR             NAY    NONE OPPOSED             MOTION CARRIED 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Palumbo to adopt Ordinance 2011-88.  Seconded by Councilman Scott. 

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR             NAY    NONE OPPOSED             MOTION CARRIED 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Palumbo to adopt Ordinance 2011-89.  Seconded by Councilwoman 

Conaway. 

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR             NAY    NONE OPPOSED             MOTION CARRIED 

12



JANUARY 3, 2012  

REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING                                                       

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

2 

 

13



14



CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
STANDING COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATIONS: 

 
FINANCE COMMITTEE REPORT 

 
                                                                    
                                                                   

                                                                  
 
                                                                  
 
                                                                  
 

BUILDINGS & PROPERTY COMMITTEE REPORT  
 
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    

PLANNING/ZONING/CODE ENFORCEMENT COMMITTEE REPORT 
 
                                                                    
                                                                    
 

PUBLIC SAFETY/ORDINANCE COMMITTEE REPORT 
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    

                                                                  
 
                                                                  
 

PUBLIC WORKS/BEAUTIFICATION/MUSEUM COMMITTEE  REPORT 
 
                                                                  
 
                                                                  

15



16



17



18



19



20



Ordinance Committee 

 Wednesday, January 11, 2012 

City Hall Council Chambers 

5:30 p.m. 
        

Councilman Kelly Reese       
Councilman Ron Scott                                                                  

Councilman Derek Boulware            
 

I. CALL TO ORDER/MEMBERS PRESENT 

 
Members Present: Kelly Reese and Derek Boulware   

 

Others Present:  David Cohen, Danny Bell, Eric Bussey, Vickie Hinman and Sheree Hilburn 
  

II. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION 

 

None 

 

III.     ORDINANCE REVIEW/DISCUSSION 

 
a.  Waiver of Sewer Tap Fee 

 

A new ordinance has been prepared which will not allow sewer tap fee waiver. 
 

Motion by Mr. Boulware  Seconded by Mr. Reese To recommend new 

ordinance and place on the next city council agenda. 

 

ALL IN FAVOR   NONE OPPOSED  MOTION CARRIED 

 

b. Transitional Duties Ordinance  
 

The Committee looked at changing the proposed ordinance to allow for additional changes. 

 

Motion by Mr. Boulware  Seconded by Mr. Reese To recommend the 

new version of the ordinance. 

 

ALL IN FAVOR   NONE OPPOSED  MOTIOIN CARRIED 
 

c. Required Financial Audit on all enities which receive city funding  

 
The committee reviewed the proposed ordinance. 

 

Motion by Mr. Boulware  Seconded by Mr. Reese To recommend. 

 

ALL IN FAVOR   NONE OPPOSED  MOTION CARRIED 

 

d. Any other actions or discussions deemed necessary for the Ordinance Committee to               
consider. 

 

IV. OTHER BUSINESS 

 

     None 

 

 

 

 

21



V.   ADJOURN 

 

      Motion by Mr. Boulware  Seconded by Mr. Reese           To adjourn at 6:37P.M 

 

      ALL IN FAVOR   NONE OPPOSED  MOTION CARRIED 

 

 

 

 

 

22



 

23



24



25



CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
REPORTS OF SPECIAL COMMITTEES 

 
NOTES: 
 
BOARD OF ZONING ADJUSTMENTS REPORT:
 
                                                                    
                                                                    
DOWNTOWN REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY REPORT: 
 
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT BOARD: 
 
                                                                   
 
                                                                    
                                                                    
LIBRARY BOARD: 
 
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
PLANNING COMMISSION REPORT: 
 
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
RECREATION BOARD REPORT: 
 
                                                                    
UTILITY BOARD REPORT: 
 
                                                                          
 
 
 

26



DOWNTOWN REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY                

DAPHNE, AL 

1705 MAIN STREET                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                              
JANUARY 23, 2012 

5:30 P.M. 

 

1.   CALL TO ORDER/ROLLCALL 

Casey Zito called the meeting to order at 5:40 p.m. 

 

Members Present: Casey Zito; Ken Balme.; Doug Bailey; Dayna Oldham. 

  

ABSENT:  Ronald Nero; Mary Beth Mantiply. 

 

Also present: Cathy Barnette, Council Liaison Rebecca Hayes, recording secretary; 

Dorothy Morrison, Beautification Committee. 

 

 

 

2.   OLD BUSINESS 

 

Focus Group Meeting 

Casey recapped the Focus Group meeting.  Everyone liked using the term historical in 

describing the downtown area, and they liked the idea of connecting resources from local to 

outside, they liked the map concept, and voiced concerns over parking and signage.  The 

members thought it would be a good idea to meet with the land owners to discuss the 

Authority’s ideas and goals. 

 

Mini-Grant Application: 

Members discussed meeting with the land owners to inform them about the mini-grants.  

They discussed grant amount limits, and how often they would award a grant, the amount 

for a matched grant and a non-matched grant, and how often a business can receive one. 

They discussed giving one grant per six (6) months per business.  They discussed giving 

grants to special events that impact Downtown Daphne.  The members want to promote the 

downtown businesses and bring in additional businesses.  Casey will finalize the grant 

application and e-mail it to the members for suggestions, and bring the final draft to the 

next meeting for approval. 

 

Website 

Mr. Michael Francis with JMF Solutions discussed options for the website. The members 

mentioned features that they would like for the site.  They would like a historical page, 

links to downtown businesses, and downtown events page, and a mini-grant page. Mr. 

Francis discussed the logo they would like for the site.  He said that he had registered 

downtowndaphne.com domain for the Authority.  He said that they needed to establish a 

base policy for operating the site, establish who will be in charge and responsible for 

posting to site, and establish what every merchant will get on the site.  The members agreed 

to provide basic information about the business and a link to that business’s webpage.  The 

members decided to go with basic pages and go from there.  Mr. Francis will meet back 

with the members to present what he has designed. 

 

 

Plaque for the fountain: 

27



DOWNTOWN REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY                

DAPHNE, AL 

1705 MAIN STREET                                                                                                                                                                                     

JANUARY 23, 2012 

5:30 P.M. 

 

2 

Doug reported that he spoke with Jeff Hudson and Jeff said that he could not locate the 

information regarding the plaque he did for city hall.  Doug said he can check with the 

company that is doing a plaque for Daphne Utilities to get the cost and time frame, and 

report back at the next meeting. 

 

4.    TREASURERS REPORT: 

 

The balance in the reserve fund is $70,131.87.  Casey is still working on trying to open a 

bank account. 

 

5.   NEW BUSINESS 

 

Report to Council 

Casey recapped her report to council she gave at the last council meeting reporting on the 

short and long term goals of the Authority, the mini-grants, and that they are still working 

on finding grants to put the utilities underground. 
 

 

6.   REPORT ON BEAUTIFICATION PROJECTS / DOROTHY MORRISION 

 

Dorothy reported that the Beautification Committee is working to beautify the KFC hill.  

They are working on Mardi Gras decorations, and putting flags at the Civic Center 

representing the different branches of the armed services.  

 

7.  NEXT MEETING 

The next meeting will be February 27, 2012 at 5:30 p.m. 

 

 

8.  ADJOURN 

 

The meeting adjourned at 7:00 p.m. 

 

 

Respectfully submitted, 

 

Downtown Redevelopment Authority                           

 
                                                                                                      

28



January 23, 2012 

CITY OF DAPHNE, AL  

INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT BOARD MEETING 6:00 P.M. at  Daphne City Hall, 

1705 Main Street, Daphne, AL in conference room. 

 

1.  CALL TO ORDER/ROLL CALL 

 

Members present – Toni Fassbender, Pokey Miller, Joe Davis and Doug Bailey 

Also present – David Cohen and Tommie Conaway 

 

2. OLD BUSINESS 

 

    None 

 

3.  TREASURERS REPORT 

 

Note of banking error on checking account for Wells Fargo the account was short         

$21,812.50.  The funds had mistakenly been removed by Wells Fargo but were replenished on 

January 23, 2012. 

 

Motion by Mr. Bailey  Seconded by Mr. Davis To document the 

discrepancy in the minutes. 

 

ALL IN FAVOR   NONE OPPOSED   MOTION CARRIED 

 

Motion by Mr. Davis  Seconded by Mr. Bailey To request a official letter 

of explanation from Wells Fargo Bank. 

 

ALL IN FAVOR   NONE OPPOSED  MOTION CARRIED 

 

 Motion by Mr. Bailey  Seconded by Mr. Davis To accept the treasures 

report in the amount of $229,746.24. 

 

ALL IN FAVOR   NONE OPPOSED  MOTION CARRIED 

 

4.   NEW BUSINESS 

   

      A call center is looking at locating in the City of Daphne and has requested assistance.  A        

      special meeting is needed to discuss. 

 

      Motion by Mr. Miller  Seconded by Mr. Bailey To set meeting date to         

      February 7, 2012 at 6 P.M. 

 

      ALL IN FAVOR   NONE OPPOSED  MOTION CARRIED 

 

 

 

29



5.  OTHER BUSINESS 

 

     None. 

 

6.   ADJOURN 

 

      Motion by Mr. Miller  Seconded by Mr. Bailey To adjourn. 

 

      ALL IN FAVOR   NONE OPPOSED  MOTION CARRIED 

 

 

 THERE BEING NO FURTHER BUSINESS TO DISCUSS THE MEETING 

 ADJOURNED AT  7:30 P.M. 

 

Respectfully Submitted, 

 

 

_____________________ 

David L. Cohen, Secretary 

 

Approved: 

________________________ 

Toni Fassbender, Chairman 

30



31



32



33



34



35



36



37



38



39



40



41



42



43



44



45



46



47



48



49



50



51



52



53



54



55



56



57



58



59



60



61



62



63



64



65



66



67



68



69



70



71



72



73



74



75



76



77



78



79



80



81



82



83



84



85



86



87



88



89



90



91



92



93



94



95



96



97



Daphne Public Library Board 

November 3, 2011 

Meeting Minutes 

 

 In Attendance: 

 

Library Director Tonja Young; Board Chair Jan Blankenhorn; Library Board Members 

Windrila Longmire, Andre LaPalme, Chantal Booth, and Jim Bodman. 

 

1) Call to Order: 

After a quorum was established, Library Board Chairman Jan called the meeting to order at 

4:07 pm.    

 

2) Reading and Approval of the Minutes: 

The minutes of the September meeting were approved; motion made by Jan and seconded 

by Chantal.  Motion passed. 

 

4) Library Director's Report: 

Tonja went over the highlights of the April, May, June, July, August, September and 

October statistical reports.  

 

During this period of months, circulation averaged between 22,875 and 31,042 per month.  

Visitors for the same period of months averaged 16,920 to 22,996 per month.  Children’s 

programs had high attendance, and computer users increased by approximately 16%.  

Computer training classes have been well received and all programs for adults, teens and 

children have been successful. 

 

Tonja presented some policy changes, particularly involving new technology, digital materials, 

and further closing loopholes on disruptive behavior in the library.    Policy changes received 

unanimous support. 

 

Tonja announced that Windrila and Andre had been approved by Council for another term on 

the library board. 

 

A short discussion occurred concerning the Lincoln: The Constitution & Civil War exhibit 

coming in January, 2012. 

 

The 2012 library holiday schedule was submitted for approval.  Motion made by Jim, 

seconded by Chantal.  Motion passed. 

 

5) Board Elections 

A motion was made by Jim and seconded by Chantal that the FY11 officers remain in their 

same offices for FY12; i.e., Jan – Chair, Andre – Vice Chair, Chantal – Treasurer, and Tonja – 

Secretary.  Motion passed unanimously. 

 

 

98



6) Public Participation 

None. 

 

7) New Business 

Andre discussed some changes in the local school systems with the board.  Most concerned 

technology, digital books, etc. 

 

8) Adjourned 

The motion to adjourn was made by Jan and the meeting adjourned at 5:01 pm. 

 

 

 

Respectfully submitted by T. Young, November 28, 2011 

99



Daphne Public Library Board 

December 1, 2011 

Meeting Minutes 

 

 In Attendance: 

 

Library Director Tonja Young; Board Chair Jan Blankenhorn; Library Board Members 

Windrila Longmire, Andre LaPalme, and Jim Bodman; President of the Friends of the Daphne 

Public Library Jim Morris. 

 

1) Call to Order: 

After a quorum was established, Library Board Chairman Jan called the meeting to order at 

4:09 pm.    

 

2) Reading and Approval of the Minutes: 

The minutes of the November meeting were approved; motion made by Jim and seconded by 

Andre.  Motion passed. 

 

4) Library Director's Report: 

Tonja discussed the upcoming speaker Dr. Wayne Flynt, professor emeritus of Auburn 

University.  Dr. Flynt will be discussing his book Keeping the Faith, Ordinary People, 

Extraordinary Lives on Dec. 7 at 10 am.   

 

Children’s activities for December were also covered, including Make & Take Ornaments 

from 12 – 5 pm on Dec. 2, Make & Take Gifts from 12 – 5 pm on Dec. 9, and Santa Stories on 

Dec. 15 from 5 – 7 pm. 

 

A short discussion occurred concerning the Lincoln: The Constitution & Civil War exhibit 

coming in January, 2012. 

 

5) Public Participation 

None. 

 

7) New Business 

None. 

 

8) Adjourned 

The motion to adjourn was made by Jan, seconded by Windrila,  and the meeting adjourned 

at 5:05 pm. 

 

 

 

Respectfully submitted by T. Young, January 4, 2012 

100



Daphne Public Library Board 
January 6, 2012 

Meeting Minutes 
 
 
 In Attendance: 
 
Library Director Tonja Young; Board Chair Jan Blankenhorn; Library Board Members Windrila Longmire, 
Andre LaPalme, and Jim Bodman; Friends President Jim Morris. 
 
1) Call to Order: 
 
After a quorum was established, Library Board Chairman Jan Blankenhorn called the meeting to order at 
4:09 pm.  
 
2) Reading and Approval of the Minutes: 
 
The minutes of the December meeting were approved; motion made by Windrila  and seconded by Jim.  
Motion passed. 
 
3) Chairman’s Report/Comments: 
 
Jan stated that speaker Wayne Flynt on December 7th had been a great success. 
 
4) Library Director's Report: 
 
Tonja did not have the December statistical report due to staff illnesses. It will be presented next month.  
She did announce that the Daphne Public Library was shown by countywide statistics to be one of the 
busiest libraries for interlibrary and intra-library loans in Baldwin County!  (see attached) 
 
Tonja discussed upcoming children’s events for December and the upcoming Lincoln grant events 
(beginning the following morning).  Tonja also announced that the new library website is up, with small 
adjustments still being made through the vendor. 
 
5) Public Participation 
 
Jim Morris announced that the Friends had awarded Adele a $500 scholarship for earning her MLIS, in 
accordance with the scholarships provided last year to Louise and Rhonda. 
 
6) Other Business 
 
None. 
 
7) Adjourned 
 
The meeting was adjourned by Jan at 5:05 pm. 
 
 
 
 
Respectfully submitted by T. Young, January 31, 2012 

101



MINUTES - 1 

 

APPROVED MINUTES 

Utilities Board Meeting 

         City of Daphne Council Chambers  January 4 (December, 2011), 2012  5:00 p.m. 
        

 
I. Call to Order 

The regular December 2011, Board meeting for the Utilities Board of the City of Daphne was held on January 4, 

2012 and called to order by Chairman Robert Segalla, at 5:00 p.m. 
 

II. Roll Call 

 Members Present: Robert Segalla, Chairman 
 Fenton E. Jenkins, Vice Chairman  

 Ron Scott, Secretary/Treasurer 

 Bailey Yelding, Mayor  
 
  Others Absent: Lon Johnston 
 

      Others Present: Jerry Speegle – Board Attorney  
 Rob McElroy – General Manager 

 Danny Lyndall – Operations Manager 
 Teresa Logiotatos – Finance Manager  

 Deloris Brown – Human Resources Manager 
 Drew Klumpp – Administrative Services Manager 
  Lori May-Wilson – Executive Assistant 

 Melinda Immel – Volkert & Associates 
 Doug Bailey - HMR 
 
 Others Absent:   
 

III. Pledge of Allegiance 
The Chairman led the Board and meeting attendees in the Pledge of Allegiance.  

 
IV. Approval of Minutes        

a. Utilities Board Minutes from December 7 (November), 2011: 
The Chairman inquired if there were any corrections noted for the submitted Minutes from the December 7, 2011, 

Utilities Board meeting. No corrections were made. 
   

MOTION BY Ron Scott to approve the Minutes for December 7 (November), 2011; 

Seconded by Fenton Jenkins. 
AYE: JENKINS, SCOTT, SEGALLA, YELDING                ABSENT: JOHNSTON   ABSTAIN:   
MOTION CARRIED 

  
 

V. Old Business 
A. Items in Abeyance 

1.  Gas Franchise Agreement – No updated information was reported. 

2.  Spanish Fort Sewer Franchise issues – No updated information was reported. 102



MINUTES - 2 

 
VI. New Business 

No New Business was report. 
 

VII. BOARD ATTORNEY’S REPORT 
 Mr. Speegle had nothing further to add to his report. 
 

VIII. FINANCIAL REPORT 
 Teresa Logiotatos had nothing further to report on the financials, however handouts pertaining to the Central 

Services building funding and an existing rate sheet were distributed.  A discussion took place regarding wording 

within the Financial Summary.    
 

IX. GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT 

a. GM Report 
Rob McElroy relayed to the Board about a situation with a customer in the TimberCreek subdivision and 
commended several of the Daphne Utilities employees for their outstanding work principles as well as their 

excellent customer service skills in assisting the customer.  

 

Operations Report 
Danny Lyndall advised of project involving the Stanton Road Water Tank and updated the Board on the Central 
Services facility.  Mr. Scott inquired the compaction tests on the Well Road project.  Doug Bailey with HMR 

explained the situation for the Board.  He also pointed out that the project on Essex Street has been completed.  
He had nothing additional to report. 

 
Melinda Immel of Volkert & Associates had nothing further to add to her report. She commented further on the 

Sanitary Sewer Rehab for the Board.    

   
X. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION  –  None. 

 

XI. BOARD ACTION –  None. 

 
XII. BOARD COMMENTS – Mr. Scott commented on the accomplishments of Daphne Utilities for 2011 and strive to   

      make improvements for 2012. 

 
XIII. ADJOURNMENT – 

 

MOTION BY Ron Scott to adjourn the meeting. Seconded by Fenton Jenkins. 
AYE: JENKINS, SEGALLA, SCOTT,YELDING           ABSENT:  JOHNSTON               ABSTAIN:                 

MOTION CARRIED 

 

The meeting adjourned at 5:22 pm.  
 

 

 
 

 
 

103



CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
MAYOR'S REPORT 

 
 

NOTES: 
 
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                   
 
                                                                   
 
                                                                   
 
                                                                   
 
                                                                   
  
 
 
 
 

104



105



106



107



108



109



110



111



112



113



114



115



116



117



118



119



120



121



CITY ATTORNEY’S REPORT 
 
NOTES:                                                              
                                                                   
 
                                                                   
 
                                                                   
 
                                                                   
 
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                   
 
                                                                    

                                                                    
DEPARTMENT HEAD’S COMMENTS  

 
                                                                   
 
                                                                   
 
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                   
 

                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                   
 
      
 
 
 
 

122



 
 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
RESOLUTIONS, ORDINANCES, ORDERS & OTHER BUSINESS 

 
NOTES: 
 
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                   
 
 

RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
 
COUNCIL COMMENTS: 
 
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
 
 
 
 

123



RESOLUTION NO. 2012-04 
 

City of Daphne Support for House Resolution 367 and Senate Bill 301 

to Recognize the Month of October Each Year as Italian and Italian 

American Heritage Month 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Daphne Support for House Resolution 367 to recognize the month 

of October Each Year as Italian and Italian American Heritage Month; and 

 

WHEREAS, Italian immigrants were instrumental in founding the City of Daphne; and 

 

WHEREAS, descendants of these original families have flourished and prospered in the 

city; and 

 

WHEREAS, many Italian Americans have moved to our rapidly growing community and 

helped preserve the cultural traditions of the heritage; and 

 

WHEREAS, Italian Americans have become civic leaders and exemplary citizens of the 

City of Daphne; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Italian American contributions have enriched the lives of citizens of 

Daphne. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the City of Daphne urges U.S. Representative 

Jo Bonner to co-sponsor and support House Resolution 367 and U.S. Senators Jeff Sessions and 

Richard Shelby to co-sponsor and support companion Senate Bill 301 which recognizes the 

month of October as Italian and Italian American Heritage Month. 

 

APPROVED AND ADOPTED ON THE ____  DAY OF ______, 2012. 

 

       ______________________________ 

       Cathy S. Barnette, Council President 

 

 

       ______________________________ 

       Bailey Yelding,  Jr., Mayor 

ATTEST: 

 

_____________________________ 

David L. Cohen 

City Clerk, MMC 

 

124



CITY OF DAPHNE 
RESOLUTION NO.  2012 - 05 

 
REVISIONS TO CITY OF DAPHNE STREET MAP 

___________________________________________________________ 
 
 WHEREAS, the Planning Commission of the City of Daphne, Alabama at their regular 

meeting held on January 26, 2012, approved a favorable recommendation to the City Council of 

the City of Daphne, Alabama for a revision to the City of Daphne Street Map and presented at 

said meeting; and 

 

 WHEREAS, said revision to street map is necessary due to additional streets being 

added to and accepted by the City; and 

 

 WHEREAS, due notice of said revisions to the City of Daphne Street Map has been 

provided to the public as required by law through publication and open display at the City of 

Daphne Public Library and City Hall; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Daphne, Alabama, after due consideration, 

and upon the recommendation of the Planning Commission of the City of Daphne, believes it is 

in the best interest of the health, safety and welfare of the citizens of the City to accept the 

revisions to the City of Daphne Street Map; and 

 

 NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 

CITY OF DAPHNE, ALABAMA, as follows: 

 

 SECTION I: ADOPTION OF MAP 

 

 THAT the City of Daphne Street Map was considered by the City of Daphne Planning 

Commission on January 26, 2012, and having made a favorable recommendation to the City 

Council and said revised map being attached hereto as Exhibit “A” is hereby adopted as the 

official “City of Daphne Street Map.” 

 

 SECTION II: REPEALER 

 

 THAT Resolution No. 2006-22, Resolution No. 2006-66, and Resolution No. 2007-05, 

Resolution 2007-69, Resolution 2008-02, 2008-41, Resolution 2009-06, Resolution 2009-72, 

Resolution 2010-22, Resolution 2010-76, 2011-09, and Resolution 2011-62 entitled “City of 

Daphne Street Map” are hereby repealed in their entirety and any Resolution(s) or parts of 

Resolution(s) conflicting with the provisions of this Resolution are hereby repealed insofar as 

they conflict. 

 

 

 

 

125



 
RESOLUTION 2012-05                   REVISIONS TO STREET MAP                  PAGE   2 

 

 

 

 

 

 SECTION III: EFFECTIVE DATE 

 

 THAT This Resolution shall take effect and be in force from and after the date of its 

approval by the City Council of the City of Daphne, Alabama. 
 

 

 

 ADOPTED AND APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

DAPHNE, ALABAMA ON THIS THE _____  DAY OF __________________, 2012. 

 

 

                                                                                                      

       ________________________ 

       CATHY S. BARNETTE,  

COUNCIL PRESIDENT 

        

                           

       ________________________ 

       BAILEY YELDING, JR.,  

MAYOR CITY OF DAPHNE 

        

 

ATTEST: 

 

__________________________ 

DAVID COHEN,  

CITY CLERK, MMC 

 

 

126



127



CITY OF DAPHNE 

ORDINANCE NO. 2012-01 

 

 

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND SECTION 6.4.1 OF THE CITY’S  

EMPLOYEE HANDBOOK AND TO ADD TO THE CITY’S EMPLOYEE 

HANDBOOK THE POLICY OF TRANSITIONAL DUTY 

 

 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Daphne, after due consideration 

believes that certain revisions to the City of Daphne Employee Handbook are necessary 

for the proper administration of said Handbook and the policies contained therein; and 

 

WHEREAS, said revisions to the Employee Handbook will enable the City to 

more easily facilitate and administer provisions of the Employee Handbook in order to 

benefit the health, safety, and welfare of its employees;  

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF 

THE CITY OF DAPHNE, ALABAMA AS FOLLOWS: 

 

SECTION I: REVISION TO SECTION 6.4.1 

 

 That Section 6.4.1 of the Employee Handbook, be and is hereby deleted in its 

entirety and is replaced as follows: 

 

 6.4.1. General. Any employee may be separated when he cannot perform the 

essential functions of his job because of extended physical or mental impairment. 

However, the city will attempt to reasonably accommodate to enable the disabled 

employee to adequately accomplish his required duties. Such accommodation may 

include job restructuring, reassignment, and/or transitional duty. If a reasonable 

accommodation is not possible, the individual may be separated in accordance with the 

guidelines contained herein. 

 

SECTION II: ADDITION OF TRANSITIONAL DUTY POLICY 

 

 That Section 6.4.1.1(A), entitled “Transitional Duty”, be added to the City’s 

Employee Handbook as follows: 

 

 

128



ORDINANCE 2012-01           TRANSITIONAL DUTY                     PAGE   2 

 

 

6.4.1.1(A)(1). Scope 

 

The scope of this policy shall apply only to employees who have been injured on 

the job and such injury is being administered under the State of Alabama Workers 

Compensation Act, Ala. Code § 25-5-1, et al. 

 

6.4.1.1(A)(2). Purpose 

 

It is the policy of the City to offer leaves of absence when appropriate to 

employees who are no longer medically able to continue the essential duties of their 

permanent job and to encourage their return to work consistent with their medical 

recovery and physician’s advice.  These guidelines are subject to all other applicable city 

policies, including, but not limited to, Job Posting, Lay-Off and Recall, Leave of 

Absence, Medical Disability, Family Leave (FMLA), Military, and Equal Employment 

Opportunity. 

 

6.4.1.1(A)(3). Definitions 

 

A. Permanent Restriction(s):  Those restrictions issued by the treating physician,  

or the nurse, which are not expected to change during the course of employment. 

 

B. Transitional Duty:  Any temporary, modified duty(ies) of employment from  

the employee’s permanent position, while receiving worker’s compensation benefits, that 

takes into consideration the employee’s health condition and abilities; but not to last 

longer than 180 days from the date the employee begins his transitional duty assignment 

or Maximum Medical Improvement (“MMI”), whichever first occurs. 

 

6.4.1.1(A)(4). General Statement 

 

All reasonable efforts will be made to return an employee to his/her former 

position or to a comparable position that is open.  Transitional Duty is to be short term 

and in no event shall it extend after an employee reaches MMI, or 180 days have 

transpired from the date the employee begins his transitional duty assignment, whichever 

occurs first.  Should an employee acquire a health condition medically precluding 

successful accomplishment of his assigned essential job functions during the healing 

period of such health condition, the city will make a reasonable effort to provide a 

temporary transitional job until such time as physician(s) ha(s)(ve) determined that the 

employee has reached MMI, or 180 days have transpired from the effective date of this 

policy, whichever first occurs.  This policy is inclusive of “FMLA” and the other city 

leave policies.  Upon reaching MMI or 180 days have transpired from the date the 

employee begins his Transitional Duty assignment, the City will determine whether a 

reasonable accommodation can be made in some available permanent job, after 

considering all medical restrictions.  If the city is unable to reasonably accommodate the  

129



ORDINANCE 2012-01           TRANSITIONAL DUTY                     PAGE   3 
 

 

specific restriction within an available permanent position, the employee will be 

terminated unless granted administrative leave at full discretion of the Mayor. An 

employee’s transitional duty assignment may be discontinued at any time with or without 

notice. 

 

Under this Transitional Duty policy, an employee assigned to a transitional duty 

position is not presumed by the City to be handicapped or disabled for the purposes of 

any other law or statute. Individuals with handicaps or disabilities may have different 

and/or additional rights under applicable law or City policy. 

 

The time period for Transitional Duty shall begin once an employee has been 

deemed eligible to return to modified and/or light duty by their medical provider and an 

available Transitional Duty position has been located by Human Resources and the 

employee’s Department Head. 

 

6.4.1.1(A)(5). Procedure 

 

1. Once the medical condition has been diagnosed, and also when the 

individual has reached MMI according to the treating physician, 

the employee must advise his/her supervisor and the Human 

Resource Director. 

 

2. (a)   During the healing period, the Transitional Duty program 

will be made available, as set forth in section 6.4.1.1(A)(4) of this 

Policy. 

 

(b) Upon reaching MMI, the treating physician shall indicate 

whether or not the person has any permanent restrictions.  The 

Human Resource Director will review those permanent restrictions 

and will decide if the employee can return to their former 

permanent job or some other available permanent job for which the 

employee has the requisite qualifications and eligibility.  Should an 

employee have a need for accommodated duty, and no such duty is 

available, documentation supporting the search for an 

accommodation(s) shall be placed in the employee’s file. 

 

3. Productive Transitional Duty job assignments are designed to 

assist employees with returning to their former full time permanent 

job.  When an employee starts Transitional Duty assignment, a 

specific duration period shall be established.  This duration period 

shall not exceed 180 days or MMI, whichever first occurs. 

 

4. The employee will be compensated at the normal rate of pay for 

the position. In the event the pay scale for the position is less than  

130



ORDINANCE 2012-01           TRANSITIONAL DUTY                     PAGE   4 
 

 

5. the employee’s normal rate of pay (pre-injury) the employee shall 

receive the normal rate of pay for the position plus 66 2/3% of the 

difference between the normal rate of pay for the position and the 

employee’s pre-injury wage. 

 

6. Should an employee have a need for accommodated duty and no 

permanent jobs are available after reaching MMI or the expiration 

of 180 days, documentation supporting the search for 

accommodation(s) shall be placed in the employee’s file.  A copy 

of the completed documentation will then be sent to the Human 

Resources Director. If no permanent employment positions, 

subject to the employee’s medical condition(s), are available after 

said search; the employee shall be terminated unless granted 

administrative leave at full discretion of the Mayor. 

 

7. When an employee returns to full duties, he/she will be required to 

provide appropriate medical documentation. 

 

6.4.1.1(A)(6). Renewal 

   

Should an employee injure himself, re-aggravate a pre-existing injury, or 

otherwise develop a health condition requiring medical attention while on his transitional 

duty assignment, but not relieving him of his ability to continue employment in his 

transitional duty assignment; he must provide documentation from his medical provider 

evidencing his ability to return to his transitional duty assignment and the amount of time 

he is to refrain from work or any applicable limitation.  

 

When the employee returns to his initial assignment, the maximum time period of 

180 days of which an employee may be placed on transitional duty begins anew. Leave of 

absence for any illness or health condition not related to the injury or medical condition 

causing the transitional duty assignment shall not affect the time period the employee 

may be placed upon transitional duty. 

 

6.4.1.1(A)(7). Implementation 

 

The City’s policy on Transitional Duty as expressed heretofore shall begin upon 

its approval by the City Council and publication as mandated by Alabama law. All City 

employees placed on any light or modified duty, as determined by their supervisor or the 

Human Resources Director, before this policy on Transitional Duty’s approval by the 

City Council and publication as mandated by Alabama law shall be exempt from said 

policy. Any employee placed on any light or modified duty before the enactment of this 

Transitional Duty policy that returns to permanent duty, or their prior position, shall be 

subject to this Transitional Duty policy upon return to permanent duty or their prior 

position. 

131



ORDINANCE 2012-01           TRANSITIONAL DUTY                     PAGE   5 
 

 

 

 SECTION III: REPEALER  

 

  That any Ordinance, or parts thereof, heretofore adopted by the City Council of 

Daphne, Alabama, which is in conflict with this Ordinance be and is hereby repealed to 

the extent of such conflict. 

  

SECTION IV: SEVERABILITY 

 

 If any section, subsection, sentence, clause, phrase, or portion of this ordinance is 

for any reason held invalid or unconstitutional by any court of competent jurisdiction, 

such portion shall be deemed a separate, distinct and independent provision and such 

holding shall not affect the validity of the remaining portions hereof.    

 

SECTION V: EFFECTIVE DATE. 

        This Ordinance shall take effect and be in force from and after the date of its 

approval by the City Council of the City of Daphne and publication as required by law. 

 

ADOPTED AND APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 

OF DAPHNE, ALABAMA, THIS____ DAY OF _______, 2012. 

 

 

 

___________________________ 

  CATHY S. BARNETTE, 

                                                    CITY COUNCIL PRESIDENT 

 

                                                   

___________________________ 

BAILEY YELDING, JR. 

MAYOR                                        
            

    

ATTEST: 

 

_____________________________ 

DAVID COHEN,  

CITY CLERK, MMC 

 

132



Ordinance 2012-02 
Emergency Management Agency (EMA) Hazard Mitigation Grant Program- HMGP DR 

(1835-0014) Lake View Loop Residential Acquisition – Grant In-kind & Cash Match 

 
WHEREAS, Ordinance 2011-81 approved and adopted the Fiscal Year 2012 Budget on 
November 21, 2011; and 
 
WHEREAS, subsequent to the adoption of the Fiscal Year 2012 budget, the City Council 
has determined that certain appropriations are required and should be approved and made 
a part of the Fiscal Year 2012 budget; and 
 
WHEREAS, the 140 Lakeview Loop residence has experience repetitive flooding through 
out the recent years; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Emergency Management Agency (EMA) has grant funding available for 
the acquisition and demolition of 140 Lakeview Loop residence: and 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Daphne did submit an application (supported by Resolution 2009-
83) to EMA and was awarded a Grant in the amount of $176,441.00 (City Match of 
$17,789.00 in-kind services and $25,677.00 Cash from the General Fund) for funding 
the acquisition  and demolition of 140 Lakeview Loop to prevent future flooding; and  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Daphne, 
Alabama, that funds from the General Fund are hereby appropriated and made a part of the 
Fiscal Year 2012 budget in the amount of $25,677.00 for a cash match for the EMA Grant. 
 
 
Furthermore, the Mayor is authorized to execute all agreements, on behalf of the City of 
Daphne, as necessary for such purpose.   
 
APPROVED AND ADOPTED by the Mayor and City Council of the City of Daphne, 
Alabama, this   ____     day of  ________________    , 2012. 
         
                                                                      ________________________________ 

Cathy Barnette, Council President    
     

_________________________________ 
                                                                      Bailey Yelding, Jr., Mayor 

           
ATTEST: 
 
____________________________ 
David L. Cohen, City Clerk MMC 

133



ORDINANCE 2012 - 04 
 
 

City Hall HVAC / Fire Alarm Repair Appropriation 

 
 
WHEREAS, Ordinance 2011-81 approved and adopted the Fiscal Year 2012 
Budget on November 21, 2011; and 
 
WHEREAS, subsequent to the adoption of the Fiscal Year 2012 budget, the City 
Council has determined that certain appropriations are required and should be 
approved and made a part of the Fiscal Year 2012 budget; and 
 
WHEREAS, during a recent fire alarm inspection it was found that the function of 
air handlers shutting down during an active fire alarm was not functioning properly; 
and 
 
WHEREAS, this function between the HVAC and the fire alarm is a safety issue. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Daphne, 
Alabama, that funds in the amount of $5,700 from the General Fund are hereby 
appropriated and made a part of the Fiscal Year 2012 budget for repairs required 
for the City Hall building. 
 
APPROVED AND ADOPTED by the Mayor and City Council of the City of 
Daphne, Alabama, this   ____     day of  ________________    , 2012. 
 
         
                                                                      ________________________________ 

   Cathy S. Barnette, Council President 
                           

 
_________________________________ 

                                                                          Bailey Yelding, Jr. , Mayor 
       
 
ATTEST: 
 
___________________________ 
David L. Cohen, City Clerk MMC 

134



ORDINANCE 2012 - 05 
 
 

USS Alabama Battleship Memorial Park 

 
WHEREAS, Ordinance 2011-81 approved and adopted the Fiscal Year 2012 
Budget on November 21, 2011; and 
 
WHEREAS, subsequent to the adoption of the Fiscal Year 2012 budget, the City 
Council has determined that certain appropriations are required and should be 
approved and made a part of the Fiscal Year 2012 budget; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Fiscal Year 2012 budget does include appropriations for certain 
community agencies with $2,000 budgeted as undesignated; and 
 
WHEREAS,  the USS Alabama Battleship Memorial Park  provides an 
environment which includes educational programs based upon American military 
history and the role of veteran and military equipment in maintaining American 
freedom; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council has determined it to be in the best interest of the City 
to make a $2,000 contribution to the USS Alabama Battleship Memorial Park. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Daphne, 
Alabama, funds  from the General Fund were appropriated  as Community 
contributions in the FY2012 Budget and funds in the amount of $2,000 are 
available for a contribution to the USS Alabama Battleship Memorial Park.  
Furthermore, the Mayor is authorized to execute an agreement, on behalf of the 
City of Daphne, as necessary for such purpose.   
 
APPROVED AND ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Daphne, 
Alabama, this   ____     day of  ________________    , 2012. 
 
         
                                                                      ________________________________ 

Cathy Barnette, Council President    
 
     

_________________________________ 
                                                                       Bailey Yelding, Jr., Mayor 
           
 
ATTEST: 
 
___________________________ 
David L. Cohen, City Clerk MMC 

135



 1 

STATE OF ALABAMA ) 
BALDWIN COUNTY ) 
CITY OF DAPHNE  ) 
 

MUNICIPAL AGENCY FUNDING CONTRACT 
 
THIS AGREEMENT, made and entered into on this the __     _ day of 
__________, 2012, by and between the CITY OF DAPHNE, a Municipal 
Corporation, of the State of Alabama (hereinafter sometimes referred to as "City" 
or "the City"), and USS Alabama Battleship Memorial Park,  (hereinafter 
sometimes referred to as the “Agency"): 
 
 
W-I-T-N-E-S-S-E-T-H 
 
 WHEREAS, the Agency has requested that the City of Daphne 
appropriate funds for its use for the benefit, either directly or indirectly, of the 
residents of the City; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, the City of Daphne desires to have the Agency perform 
certain services during the 2011-2012 fiscal year. 
 
 THEREFORE, in consideration of the benefits moving each to the other, it 
is mutually agreed by and between the City and the Agency as follows: 
 
I. AUTHORITY 
 
 Agency represents and warrants to City that it is authorized by law to 
receive funding from City and that such funding will not be in violation of Article 
IV, Section 94, or amendments thereto, of the Constitution of Alabama, 1901, or 
any other constitutional or statutory provision. 
 
Agency further warrants that funding from the City will only be used to perform 
public services and/or acts which the City is otherwise authorized to perform or to 
fund itself. 
 
II. SERVICES 
 
 The Agency provides the following public services within the Corporate 
Limits of the City of Daphne: 

 
The Agency provides a valuable function to the City and its citizens by 
providing league play for the general public within the City. Such league 
play has brought the opportunity for the agency to represent the City in the 
state tournaments and act as goodwill ambassadors for the City. 

 
 If Agency provides public services both inside and outside the Corporate 
Limits of the City, then, if requested by the City or its representative, it shall 

136



 2 

submit an audit report demonstrating that services by the Agency, at least to the 
extent of the funding herein, shall be and were provided within the Corporate 
Limits of the City, including an identification of the number of City residents 
served by said agency. 
 
III.  APPROPRIATION 
 
 The City shall appropriate funds to the Agency in the following amount for 
the 2011-2012 fiscal year: $ 2,000 (Two Thousand Dollars), said amount to be 
paid pursuant to a method determined by the Finance Director of the City.  The 
Finance Director of the City or his/her designee shall be the representative of the 
City for the administration and implementation of the provisions hereof on behalf 
of the City. 
 
IV.  SEPARATE AGREEMENTS 
 
 The City shall be under no obligation to the Agency except to the extent 
set out expressly in this Agreement.  Provided, however, in the event there is a 
separate valid written agreement between the City and Agency, then this 
Funding Agreement is supplemental thereto and in the event of a conflict the 
terms of the latest written agreement shall prevail. 
 
V.  TERM; TERMINATION 
 
 The terms of this Agreement shall commerce as of the  _______ day of 
________, 2012, and shall continue in force until the 30th day of September, 
2012, unless sooner terminated.  Provided, however, in the event a new contract 
is not executed by the commencement of the new fiscal year, the City may elect 
to continue funding if appropriated by budget or budget continuation provisions 
and if so, the Agency agrees to remain bound by the terms of this Agreement 
and to continue to provide all services hereunder until a new funding contract is 
executed. The contract is otherwise terminated as set forth herein or if the official 
City budget does not contain an appropriation for the Agency.  Either party to this 
Agreement may, with or without cause, terminate this Agreement as to the first 
day of any month by giving the other party no less than thirty (30) days written 
notice thereof.  In event of termination by either party, the Agency shall refund to 
the City an amount equal to the excess of the total amount appropriated over an 
amount which bears the same ratio to the total amount appropriated as the 
month(s) actually performed bear to the total months covered by this Agreement. 
 
 
 
VI.  NON-DISCRIMINATION AND COMPLIANCE 
 
 This Agency hereby covenants and agrees that in performing its 
responsibilities and obligations hereunder, the Agency, its officers, agents and 
employees will not, on the grounds of race, color, sex, religion, national origin, or 
disability, discriminate or permit discrimination against any person or group of 

137



 3 

persons, in any manner.  The Agency further agrees to comply with all applicable 
state and federal ordinances and regulations, including but not limited to the 
Rehabilitation Act of 1973, the Americans with Disabilities Act, the Civil Rights 
Act of 1964, and any regulations promulgated thereunder.  The Agency further 
agrees to appoint an ADA coordinator.  Said coordinator will be responsible for 
ensuring that the Agency is in compliance with the Americans with Disabilities 
Act and will advise the City of Daphne ADA Coordinator for services and 
programs as to the Agency's state of compliance with the Americans with 
Disabilities Act. 
 
VII.  INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR 
 
 It is agreed between the City and the Agency that the Agency is an 
independent contractor.  Neither the City nor its officers, agents or employees 
shall be liable for damages, claims, actions, or causes of action, brought against 
the Agency, for the activities of the Agency. 
 
 Notwithstanding any of the provisions of this Agreement, it is agreed that 
the City has no financial interest in the business of Agency, and shall not be 
liable for any debts or obligations incurred by Agency, nor shall the City be 
deemed or construed to be partner, joint adventurer or otherwise interested party 
in the assets of Agency, or profits earned or derived by Agency, nor shall Agency 
at any time or times use the name or credit of the City in purchasing or 
attempting to purchase any equipment, supplies, or other thing or things 
whatsoever. 
 
 Agency in the performance of its operations and obligations hereunder 
shall not be deemed to be the agent of the City but shall be deemed to be an 
independent contractor in every respect and shall take all steps at its own 
expense as City may from time to time request to indicate that it is an 
independent contractor.  City does not and will not assume any responsibility for 
the means by which or manner in which services by Agency, provided for herein, 
are performed, but on the contrary, Agency shall be wholly responsible therefore. 
 
VIII.  INDEMNITY 
 
 The Agency hereby covenants with the City that it will indemnify and hold 
the City and its officers, agents and employees harmless for or on account of any 
claim, suit, cause of action or judgment arising out of or in any manner 
associated with this Agreement or services provided or performed by Agency or 
any of its officers, agents or employees. 
 
IX.  NO THIRD PARTY BENEFICIARIES 
 
 It is the intent of the parties to this Agreement that they be the only parties 
to the Agreement and to expressly exclude third party beneficiaries; no person 
not a party to the Agreement may claim benefits under the Agreement. 
 

138



 4 

 
X.  SERVICE AREA 
 
 Agency shall submit an annual financial statement and, if requested by the 
City, (submit to the Office of the Finance Director of the City), a written monthly 
report of the Agency's activities and expenditures, including, but not limited to, 
information demonstrating that services by the Agency within the Corporate 
Limits of the City at least equal, if not exceed, the funding from the City for that 
month (submit to the Office of the Finance Director of the City) .  Should the City 
determine at any time during the term of this Contract that Agency is not 
providing services within the City Corporate Limits at least equal to the funding 
herein, then the City may terminate this Agreement immediately.  Upon such 
termination, Agency may be, at the sole discretion of the City, required to refund 
any funds deemed by the City not to have been appropriately expended within 
the Corporate Limits. 
 
XI.  BOOKS AND RECORDS/REPORTS 
 
 Agency shall, at the request of the City, throw open and provide, at a time 
and place designated by the City, all books, records, accounts, statements and 
other documents as needed by the City to enable it to conduct a financial and/or 
operational review or audit of agency operations and/or finances.  If Agency 
refuses to honor the City's request within ten (10) days, it shall refund to the City 
all funds appropriated to it during the term of the contract.  All reports, 
evaluations and audits required shall be provided by Agency to any person 
appointed by the City or the Mayor to the Agency's governing body. 
 
XII.  AUDIT 
 
 The City may require Agency to have its financial records audited by an 
independent CPA firm.  A copy of the audited financial statements will be mailed 
to the City's Finance Director as soon as possible after the statements are 
issued. 
 
XIII.  OPEN MEETING, PUBLIC RECORDS, COMPETITIVE BIDS 
AND OTHER APPLICABLE LAWS 
 
 A. As Agency is receiving public funds and/or other things of public 
value, including in-kind services, use of City employees and/or equipment from 
the City pursuant to this agreement, Agency agrees as follows: 
 
 1. To the same and like extent as is applicable to the City of Daphne, 
all meetings of the governing or controlling body of the Agency or any committee 
or subcommittee thereof shall be open to the public when any issue or matter 
involving or relating directly or indirectly to this Agreement is discussed or 
considered and when there is any discussion or consideration of the use of public 
funds or things of value provided to the Agency by or through the City. 
 

139



 5 

 2. Public Records.  To the same and like extent as is applicable to the 
City of Daphne pursuant to State law, all records, documents, letters, minutes, 
memoranda, etc. of the Agency shall be open to public inspection and copying 
when the same pertain to any issue or matter involving or relating directly or 
indirectly to the performance by Agency of this Agreement or the use of public 
funds or other things of value provided to the Agency by or through the City. 
 
 3. Expenditure of Public Funds.  To the same and like extent as is 
applicable to the City pursuant to State law, all expenditures or disbursements of 
funds received by the Agency, whether directly or indirectly, from the City shall 
be subject to competitive bidding. 
 
XIV.  SEVERABILITY 
 
 It is expressly understood and agreed by and between the parties hereto 
that in the event any covenant, condition or provision herein contained is held to 
be invalid by any court of competent jurisdiction, or otherwise appears to both 
parties to be invalid, the invalidity of any such covenant, condition, or provision 
herein contained, shall not affect other remaining and valid covenants or 
conditions herein unless such invalidity renders performance of the essential 
elements of the contract impossible. 
 
XV.  MISCELLANEOUS CLAUSES 
 
 Capacity: Each Party to this Agreement represents and warrants to the 
other as follows: 
 
 A. That it is an individual of the age of majority or otherwise a legal 
entity duly organized and in good standing pursuant to all applicable laws, rules 
and regulations. 
 
 B. That each has full power and capacity to enter into this Agreement, 
to perform and to conclude the same including the capacity, to the extent 
applicable, to grant, convey and/or transfer, areas, assets, facilities, properties, 
(both real and personal), permits, consents and authorizations and/or the full 
power and right to acquire and accept the same. 
 
 C. That to the extent required, each Party has obtained the necessary 
approval of its governing body or board and a resolution or other binding act has 
been duly and properly enacted by such governing body or board authorizing this 
Agreement and said approval has been reduced to writing and certified or 
attested by the appropriate official of the Party. 
 
 D. That each Party has duly authorized and empowered a 
representative to execute this Agreement on their respective behalf and the 
execution of the Agreement by such representative fully and completely binds the 
Party to the terms and conditions hereof. 
 

140



 6 

 E. That absent fraud, the execution of this Agreement by a 
representative of the party shall constitute a certification that all such 
authorization for execution exists and has been performed and the other Party 
shall be entitled to rely upon the same.  To the extent a Party is a partnership, 
limited liability company or joint venture, the execution of this Agreement by any 
member thereof shall bind the Party and to the extent that the execution of 
Agreement is limited to a manager, managing partner or specific member then 
the person so executing this Agreement is duly authorized to act in such capacity 
for the Party. 
 
 F. That each party represents and warrants to the other that there is 
no litigation, claim, or administrative action threatened or pending or other 
proceedings to its knowledge against it which would have an adverse impact 
upon this transaction or upon either's ability to conclude the transaction or 
perform pursuant to the terms and conditions of this Agreement. 
 
 G. That each party has obtained any and all required permits, 
approvals and/or authorizations from third parties to enable it to fully perform 
pursuant to the terms and conditions of this Agreement. 
 
 Final Integration: This Agreement together with any amendments, 
constitutes the entire agreement of the parties, as a complete and final 
integration thereof with respect to its subject matter.  In the event of a direct 
conflict between the provisions hereof and any prior agreement or amendment, 
the latter shall supersede the former.  All written or oral understandings and 
agreements heretofore had between and among the parties are merged into this 
Agreement, which alone fully and completely expresses their understandings.  
No representation, warranty or covenant made by any party which is not 
contained in this Agreement or expressly referred to herein has been relied on by 
any party in entering into this Agreement. 
 
 Force Majeure: Neither party to this Agreement shall hold the other party 
responsible for damages or delay in performance caused by acts of God, strikes, 
lockouts or other circumstances beyond the reasonable control of the other or the 
other party's employees agents or contractors. 
 
 Amendment in Writing: This Agreement may not be amended, modified, 
altered, changed, terminated or waived in any respect whatsoever, except by a 
further agreement in writing, properly executed by all of the parties. 
 
 Binding Effect: This Agreement shall bind the parties and their respective 
personal representatives, heirs, next of kin, legatees, distributees, successors, 
and assigns.  If any provision in this Agreement shall be invalid, illegal or 
unenforceable, the validity, legality and enforceability of the remaining provisions 
shall not in any way be affected or impaired thereby. 
 
 Captions: The captions of this Agreement are for convenience and 
reference only, are not a part of this Agreement, and in no way define, describe, 

141



 7 

extend or limit the scope or intent of this Agreement. 
 
 Constructions: This Agreement shall be construed in its entirety 
according to its plain meaning and shall not be construed against the party who 
provided or drafted it. 
 
 Mandatory and Permissive: "Shall", "will", and "agrees" are mandatory, 
"may" is permissive. 
 
 Governing Laws: The laws of the State of Alabama shall govern the 
validity of this Agreement, the construction of its terms, the interpretation of the 
rights, the duties of the parties, the enforcement of its terms, and all other 
matters relating to this Agreement. 
 
 Prohibition on Assignment and Delegation: No party to this Agreement 
may assign or delegate its interests or obligations hereunder without the written 
consent of all other parties hereto obtained in advance of any such assignment 
or delegation.  No such assignment or delegation shall in any manner 
whatsoever relieve any party from its obligations and duties hereunder and such 
assigning or delegating party shall in all respects remain liable irrespective of 
such assignment or delegation. 
 
 Waiver: Non enforcement of any provision of this Agreement by either 
party shall not constitute a waiver of that provision, nor shall it affect the 
enforceability of that provision or of the remaining terms and conditions of the 
Agreement. 
 
 Ownership of Contract Documents: The Contract Documents, and 
copies of parts thereof, are furnished and owned by the City.  All portions of the 
Contract Document, and copies of parts thereof, are the instruments of serve for 
this project.  They are not to be used on other work and are to be returned to the 
City on request at the completion of the work.  Any reuse of these materials 
without specific written verification or adaptation by the City will be at the risk of 
the user and without liability or legal expense to the City.  Such user shall hold 
the City harmless from any and all damages, including reasonable attorneys 
fees, from any and all claims arising from any such reuse.  Any such verification 
and adoption shall entitle the City to further compensation at rates to be agreed 
upon by the user and the City. 
 
 Fines and Penalties The Contractor shall be solely liable for any and all 
fines or penalties which may be levied by any governmental authority against the 
Owner and/or Contractor which are related to the Contractor's operations.  The 
Owner shall deduct the amount of the levied fine or penalty from the Contract 
amount. 
 
 Agreement Date/Counterparts: The date of this Agreement is intended 
as and for a date for the convenient identification of this Agreement and is not 
intended to indicate that this Agreement was necessarily executed and delivered 

142



 8 

on said date.  This instrument may be executed in any number of counterparts, 
each of which so executed shall be deemed an original, but all such counterparts 
shall together constitute but one and the same instrument. 
 
 Use of Words and Phrases: The following words and phrases, where 
used in this document, shall be given the following and respective interpretations.  
"Herein," "hereby," "hereunder," and other equivalent words refer to this 
document as an entirety and not solely to the particular portion hereof in which 
any such word is used. 
 
 The definitions set forth in any portion of this Agreement unless the text or 
context indicates differently shall be deemed applicable whether the words 
defined are herein used in the singular or the plural.  Wherever used herein any 
pronoun or pronouns shall be deemed to include both singular and plural and to 
cover all genders. 
 
 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this 
Agreement as of the day and date first set forth above. 
 
 
     CITY OF DAPHNE, a Municipal Corporation 
 
     ___________________________ 
     Bailey Yelding, Jr., Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
________________________  
David Cohen, City Clerk, MMC 
 
 

AGENCY NAME: ___________________ 
 
     BY:_______________________________ 
 
     TITLE:_____________________________ 
 
     Federal Tax ID#:_____________________ 
WITNESS: 
 
 
____________________________ 
 
By:_________________________ 
 
 
 
 
 

143



 9 

 
ADDENDUM -  

MUNICIPAL AGENCY FUNDING CONTRACT 
 
WHEREAS THE AGREEMENT, made and entered into on the ______ day of  
____________, 2012, by and between the CITY OF DAPHNE, a Municipal Corporation, 
of the State of Alabama (hereinafter sometimes referred to as "City" or "the City"), and 
USS Alabama Battleship Memorial Park,  (hereinafter sometimes referred to as the 
“Agency") needs to be amended: 
 
WHEREAS,  Council has approved additional funds since the Daphne Dixie Boys have 
progressed from State to National competition for use for the benefit, either directly or 
indirectly, of the residents of the City; and, 
  
WHEREAS, the Agency warrants that funding from the City will only be used to perform 
public services and/or acts which the City is otherwise authorized to perform or to fund 
itself. 

 
WHEREAS, the Agency provides a valuable function to the City and its citizens by 
providing league play for the general public within the City. Such league play has 
brought the opportunity for the agency to represent the City in the state tournaments and 
act as goodwill ambassadors for the City. 
 
THEREFORE it is mutually agreed by and between the City and the Agency as follows: 
The City shall allocate  $2,000 (Two Thousand Dollars) to USS Alabama Battleship 
Memorial Park according to all terms of the contract. 
  
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement as of the 
day and date first set fort above. 
 
     CITY OF DAPHNE, A Municipal Corporation 
     ___________________________ 
     Bailey Yelding, Jr., Mayor 
ATTEST: 
________________________  
David Cohen, City Clerk, MMC 

AGENCY:_________________________ 
 

     BY:_______________________________ 
 
     TITLE:_____________________________ 
 
     Federal Tax ID#:______________________ 
 
WITNESS: 
____________________________ 
 
By:_________________________ 

144



CITY OF DAPHNE 

ORDINANCE NO.  2012-06 

 

 

AN ORDINANCE TO ESTABLISH PROTOCOL FOR THE APPROPRIATION 

OF FUNDING FOR OUTSIDE AGENCIES 

 

 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Daphne, after due consideration 

believes that an established procedure and protocol as to the granting of City monies to 

outside agencies is necessary for the proper administration of the same; and, 

 

WHEREAS, said procedure and protocol will enable the City to more easily stay 

within its yearly established budget; and, 

 

WHEREAS, said revisions will benefit the health, safety, and welfare of its 

citizens;  

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF 

THE CITY OF DAPHNE, ALABAMA AS FOLLOWS: 

 

SECTION I: DEFINITIONS 

 

The following terms shall have the meaning ascribed to them herein unless the context 

clearly indicates otherwise:  

 

Agency. An individual, organization, association or corporation whether for profit 

or nonprofit, that requests funding from the city for use on a regular or annual basis. 

Agency includes any entity whose funding from the city would be within the provisions 

of section 94 and/or Amendment 112 of the Alabama Constitution of 1901, and any 

public or quasi-public entities authorized by state law to receive municipal funding. The 

federal government, the State of Alabama or any agency thereof are excluded from the 

definition of agency.  

 

Audit. A detailed written statement of all receipts and expenses of the agency for 

the immediately preceding fiscal year and an analysis thereof by a reputable, disinterested 

and certified public accountant or the office of the State of Alabama Examiners of Public 

Accounts conducted pursuant to generally accepted accounting principles. The audit shall 

include any management letter prepared by the certified public accountant that prepared 

the audit. A financial statement balance sheet or summary thereof will not substitute for 

an audit.  

 

Funding. An appropriation in a municipal budget of city monies (or federal funds) 

for public purposes to benefit residents of the city for which the agency proposes to 

operate and the expenditures of those funds for those purposes to the agency. Funding  

145



ORDINANCE 2012-06                                                                                        PAGE   2 

 

 

also includes the lending of credit, in kind services, the use of city employees or 

equipment and anything of value of the city.  

 

SECTION II:   REQUEST FOR FUNDING 

 

(a) Generally. Any agency requesting funding from the City of Daphne for the next fiscal 

year of the city shall submit the same to the city finance director in writing. Such request 

shall be plainly designated as such and shall include all information pertinent to the 

agency and the purpose for which funding is requested. The request for funding shall 

occur well in advance of the commencement of the city's fiscal year and no later than a 

date established by the mayor. Such request shall be in a form and pursuant to funding 

request requirements of the mayor and the city finance department.  

 

(b) Supporting documents. The agency shall submit with its funding request the 

following documents:  

 

(1)  A financial report in the form of an audit, review or compilation.  

  

(2) An annual report (if agency was in operation or existence during the 

preceding fiscal year). 

 

(3) On one schedule: 

 

a. The adopted budget of the agency for the prior fiscal year 

(if agency was in operation or existence during the 

preceding fiscal year).  

 

b. The agency's current fiscal year final adopted budget. 

 

c. The agency's preliminary budget for the next fiscal year 

(fiscal year to which funding request applies). 

 

(4) A statement that the agency requires an officer of the agency's board to co-

sign all checks; provided, however, if the agency has submitted an audit to 

the city, it shall not be required to submit such a statement or engage in 

such practice.  

 

(5) Any additional information the city may determine is relevant to evaluate 

the funding request. 

 

(6) A written certification to the finance director that a copy of the agency's 

financial reports, annual report, and management letter are available for 

public viewing and where the same may be viewed.  

 

146



ORDINANCE 2012-06                                                                                        PAGE   3 

 

 

SECTION III:   FINANCIAL REPORTS 

 

(a) Required. Each agency requesting funding from the city shall have conducted a 

financial report consisting either of an audit, review or compilation, depending upon the 

circumstances and as herein defined of the agency's respective finances. All such 

financial reports shall include a management letter which shall be delivered to the city 

upon completion, but no later than the agency's request to the city for funding for the next 

fiscal year.  

 

(b) Financial reports.  

 

(1) Audits. Agencies that are requesting for the next fiscal year and/or have 

received in the previous fiscal year more than twenty-five thousand dollars ($25,000.00) 

from the city in annual funding shall have a formal audit of their respective finances for 

the preceding year conducted by an independent CPA and submit the same with its 

request. Such audit shall meet all criteria of generally accepted accounting principles and 

consist, at a minimum, of an extensive review of the agency's finances by a qualified 

accounting firm to assure that adequate controls are in place, testing various types of 

documentation and confirming balances (cash receivables, payables, etc.)  

 

(2) Reviews. Agencies that are requesting for the next fiscal year and/or have 

received in the previous fiscal year less than or equal to twenty-five thousand dollars 

($25,000.00) but more than ten thousand dollars ($10,000.00) from the city in annual 

funding shall have a review financial report of the agency's preceding-year financial 

statements conducted by an independent CPA and submit the same with its request to the 

city. Such review shall meet the criteria of generally accepted accounting principles and 

consist of various inquiries of the agency by the accounting firm, performance of certain 

analytical procedures and a representation letter from the agency.  

 

(3) Compilation. Agencies that are requesting for the next fiscal year and/or 

received in the previous fiscal year less than or equal to ten thousand dollars ($10,000.00) 

from the city in annual funding shall have a compilation of its finances for the preceding 

year conducted by an independent CPA and submit the same with its request. Such 

compilation shall meet the criteria of generally accepted accounting principles and 

provide adequate information concerning the agency's finances in a financial statement 

format.  

 

(4) Exceptions.  

 

a. Provided, however, for agencies of which an audit is required, if 

the agency has not previously been funded by the city in the prior 

fiscal year and if the agency has not had an audit conducted, as 

otherwise required herein, then that agency shall submit one of the 

following in descending order:  

147



ORDINANCE 2012-06                                                                                        PAGE   4 

 

 

1. The most recent year's audit. 

 

2. A review of the agency's most recent year's 

financial statement by an independent CPA. 

 

3. Compilation of the most recent year's financial 

statements. 

 

b. An audit, as herein defined, will not be required from any agency 

completely funded by the city through community development 

block grants (CDBG) or emergency shelter grants (ESG).  

 

c. Regardless of whether the agency has been funded in previous 

years by the city, should the finance director determine that, due to 

circumstances essentially beyond the agency's control, it would 

impose an undue hardship on the agency to provide any or all of 

the supporting documents otherwise required by this article, he/she 

may waive, defer, or modify such requirement and/or permit a 

substitute supporting document subject to terms he/she determines 

appropriate.  

 

(5) Notwithstanding anything in here to the contrary, during the course of 

consideration of an agency funding request, the agency may be required to 

provide additional information to the mayor, finance department or the 

city council.  

 

SECTION IV:  ANNUAL REPORT 

 

(a) Each agency requesting or receiving funding from the city shall submit in writing 

an annual report on the activities of the organization. Such a report shall be delivered to 

the city finance director and the mayor no later than the agency's request to the city for 

funding for the next fiscal year.  

 

(b) The annual report shall provide information demonstrating that the services 

provided by the agency within the corporate limits of the city, at least equal if not exceed 

the funding from the city for that year.  

 

(c) The annual report shall also relate the specific activities of the agency during the 

year to the purpose for which the agency was created and as represented in any city 

funding contract or request to the city.  

 

(d) The executive director of the agency shall also certify in writing to the city 

finance director that a copy of the said annual report is available for public viewing and 

where the public viewing may be held.  

148



ORDINANCE 2012-06                                                                                        PAGE   5 
 

 

SECTION V:  REPORTS TO CITY APPOINTEES ON AGENCY BOARDS 

 

All reports, evaluations and audits herein required of any agency to be funded by 

the city shall also be provided by the agency to any person appointed by the city or the 

mayor to sit upon the governing board of the agency.  

 

SECTION VI:  NONDISCRIMINATION 

 

Any agency receiving funding from the city as herein provided shall covenant and 

agree that in performing its responsibilities and obligations, that neither the agency nor its 

officers, agents or employees will on the grounds of race, color, sex, religion, national 

origin or handicap, discriminate or permit discrimination against any person or group of 

persons in any manner.  

 

SECTION VII:  COMPLIANCE WITH ALL APPLICABLE LAWS AND 

REGULATIONS  

 

Each agency receiving funding from the city shall execute an agency funding 

contract as prepared by the city legal department and shall agree to abide by all the terms 

and conditions thereof and to comply with all applicable laws, ordinances and 

regulations.  

 

SECTION VIII:  TERMS OF FUNDING 

 

Each agency receiving funds from the city shall represent and warrant to the city 

that it is authorized by law to receive funding and that such funding will not be in 

violation of Article IV, Section 94 or Amendment 112 of the Constitution of Alabama or 

any other constitutional or statutory provision. Each agency shall also set forth specific 

statutory authority to receive funding from the city if such authority exists. Agency shall 

also warrant that funding from the city will only be used to perform acts which the city is 

otherwise authorized to perform itself or to fund.  

 

SECTION IX:  BUDGET REQUIREMENTS 

 

Each agency receiving funding from the city shall adopt as a part of its annual 

operating procedure, a written budget which will indicate principal sources of anticipated 

revenue of the agency and stating sums appropriated for expenditure by the agency 

during the fiscal year. The agency's budget may be supported by other documents to 

further explain or delineate the purpose, nature and amount of appropriations made 

therein, but such other documents shall be attached thereto. The agency must adopt a 

balanced budget.  

 

 

 

149



ORDINANCE 2012-06                                                                                        PAGE   6 

 

 

SECTION X:  POSITION OF CITY 

 

(a) Notwithstanding any provision of this ordinance or funding agreement, the 

city shall have no financial interest in the business of the agency and shall not be liable 

for any debts or obligations incurred by any agency, nor shall the city be deemed or 

construed to be a partner, joint adventurer or otherwise interested in the assets of the 

agency or profits earned or derived by agency, nor shall agency at any time or times 

choose the name or credit of the city in purchasing or attempting to purchase any 

equipment, supplies or other thing or things of value whatsoever. Neither the city nor its 

officers, agents or employees shall be liable for damages, claims, actions or causes of 

action brought against the agency or for the activities of the agency.  

 

(b) The agency in performing its operations and obligations under any funding 

contract with the city shall not be deemed to be the agent of the city but shall be deemed 

to be an independent contractor in every respect and shall take all steps at its own 

expense as the city may from time to time request to indicate that it is an independent 

contractor. The city does not and will not assume any responsibility for the means by 

which or manner in which services by agency are performed, but on the contrary, agency 

shall be wholly responsible therefor.  

 

SECTION XI:    WAIVER 

 

 The City reserves the right to waive any requirement established by this 

Ordinance for any agency. The City’s decision to waive any requirement shall be 

determined on a case by case basis and take into consideration factors including, but not 

limited to: 

 

a. The amount requested by an agency and said agency’s ability to comply 

with the requirements of this Ordinance. 

 

b. Exigent circumstances eliminating the ability of the agency to comply 

with the requirements of this Ordinance. 

 

SECTION XII:   SEVERABILITY 

 

 If any section, subsection, sentence, clause, phrase, or portion of this ordinance is 

for any reason held invalid or unconstitutional by any court of competent jurisdiction, 

such portion shall be deemed a separate, distinct and independent provision and such 

holding shall not affect the validity of the remaining portions hereof.    

  

 

 

150



ORDINANCE 2012-06                                                                                        PAGE   7 

 

 

SECTION XIII:   EFFECTIVE DATE 

         This Ordinance shall take effect and be in force from and after the date of its 

approval by the City Council of the City of Daphne and publication as required by law. 

 

ADOPTED AND APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 

OF DAPHNE, ALABAMA, THIS____ DAY OF _______, 2012. 

 

 

 

___________________________ 

  CATHY BARNETTE, 

                                                    CITY COUNCIL PRESIDENT 

 

                                                    

 

___________________________ 

BAILEY YELDING, Jr.  

MAYOR                                        
            

    

ATTEST: 

 

_____________________________ 

DAVID COHEN,  

CITY CLERK, MMC 

 

151



 
 CITY OF DAPHNE 
 

   ORDINANCE NO. 2012-07 
 

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND ORDINANCE 2008-16 / SALARY OF THE  
CITY COUNCIL MEMBERS 

  
 

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF DAPHNE, 

ALABAMA, TO AMEND ORDINANCE 2008-16 TO READ AS FOLLOWS: 

 

SECTION ONE: 

 

That the salary of the City Council President of the City of Daphne, commencing November 5, 2012, 

shall be and the same is hereby fixed at Six Hundred Sixty-Six Dollars and Sixty-Seven 

Cents($666.67) semi-monthly. 

 

SECTION TWO: 

 

That the salary of the City Council Vice President of the City of Daphne, commencing November 5, 

2012, shall be and the same in hereby fixed at  Five Hundred Fifty Dollars ($550.00) semi-monthly. 

 

SECTION THREE: 

 

That the salary of the City Council Members of the City of Daphne, commencing November 5, 2012, 

shall be and the same is hereby fixed at Five Hundred Dollars ($500.00) semi-monthly. 

 

SECTION FOUR: 

 

That the City Council Members shall be entitled to a cell phone, to participate in the city’s 

health insurance plan at the same rate as employee cost, and to receive an annual increase in salary 

based on the Annual Cost of Living Adjustment for Social Security, if any. 

 

SECTION FIVE: 

 

That an Ordinance setting forth the salary of the City Council Members is hereby repealed to the 

extent that the provisions of such Ordinance conflict with the provisions hereof. 

 

SECTION SIX: 

 

That this Ordinance shall become effective upon adoption and publication as required by law, and 

shall continue in force and effect until repealed by action of the Council. 

152



ORDINANCE NO. 2012-07             SALARY FOR COUNCIL MEMBERS                  PAGE     2 

 

 

 

 

ADOPTED AND APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF DAPHNE, 

ALABAMA on this _______ day of __________, 2012. 

 

 

       ____________________________________ 

       Cathy S. Barnettte, 

       Council President 

        

 

 

_____________________________________  

Bailey Yelding, Jr., 

       Mayor 

        

ATTEST: 

 

_____________________________ 

David L. Cohen 

City Clerk, MMC 

 
 

153



 CITY OF DAPHNE 
 

   ORDINANCE NO. 2012-08 
 

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND ORDINANCE 2008-16 / SALARY OF THE  
CITY COUNCIL MEMBERS 

  
 

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF DAPHNE, 

ALABAMA, TO AMEND ORDINANCE 2008-16 TO READ AS FOLLOWS: 

 

SECTION ONE: 

 

That the salary of the City Council President of the City of Daphne, commencing November 5, 2012, 

shall be and the same is hereby fixed at Six Hundred Sixty-Six Dollars and Sixty-Seven 

Cents($666.67) semi-monthly. 

 

SECTION TWO: 

 

That the salary of the City Council Vice President of the City of Daphne, commencing November 5, 

2012, shall be and the same in hereby fixed at  Five Hundred Fifty Dollars ($550.00) semi-monthly. 

 

SECTION THREE: 

 

That the salary of the City Council Members of the City of Daphne, commencing November 5, 2012, 

shall be and the same is hereby fixed at Five Hundred Dollars ($500.00) semi-monthly. 

 

SECTION FOUR: 

 

That the City Council Members shall be entitled to a cell phone, and to participate in the 

city’s health insurance plan at the same rate as employee cost. 

 

SECTION FIVE: 

 

That an Ordinance setting forth the salary of the City Council Members is hereby repealed to the 

extent that the provisions of such Ordinance conflict with the provisions hereof. 

 

SECTION SIX: 

 

That this Ordinance shall become effective upon adoption and publication as required by law, and 

shall continue in force and effect until repealed by action of the Council. 

 

 

 

154



ORDINANCE NO. 2012-08             SALARY FOR COUNCIL MEMBERS                  PAGE     2 

 

 

 

 

ADOPTED AND APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF DAPHNE, 

ALABAMA on this _______ day of __________, 2012. 

 

 

       ____________________________________ 

       Cathy S. Barnettte, 

       Council President 

        

 

 

_____________________________________  

Bailey Yelding, Jr., 

       Mayor 

        

ATTEST: 

 

_____________________________ 

David L. Cohen 

City Clerk, MMC 

 
 

155



 CITY OF DAPHNE 
 

   ORDINANCE NO. 2012-09 
 

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND ORDINANCE 2008-16 / SALARY OF THE  
CITY COUNCIL MEMBERS 

  
 

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF DAPHNE, 

ALABAMA, TO AMEND ORDINANCE 2008-16 TO READ AS FOLLOWS: 

 

SECTION ONE: 

 

That the salary of the City Council President of the City of Daphne, commencing November 5, 2012, 

shall be and the same is hereby fixed at Six Hundred Sixty-Six Dollars and Sixty-Seven Cents 

($666.67) semi-monthly. 

 

SECTION TWO: 

 

That the salary of the City Council Vice President of the City of Daphne, commencing November 5, 

2012, shall be and the same in hereby fixed at  Five Hundred Fifty Dollars ($550.00) semi-monthly. 

 

SECTION THREE: 

 

That the salary of the City Council Members of the City of Daphne, commencing November 5, 2012, 

shall be and the same is hereby fixed at Five Hundred Dollars ($500.00) semi-monthly. 

 

SECTION FOUR: 

 

That the City Council Members shall be entitled to a cell phone, and to receive an annual 

increase in salary based on the Annual Cost of Living Adjustment for Social Security, if any. 

 

SECTION FIVE: 

 

That an Ordinance setting forth the salary of the City Council Members is hereby repealed to the 

extent that the provisions of such Ordinance conflict with the provisions hereof. 

 

SECTION SIX: 

 

That this Ordinance shall become effective upon adoption and publication as required by law, and 

shall continue in force and effect until repealed by action of the Council. 

 

 

 

156



ORDINANCE NO. 2012-09             SALARY FOR COUNCIL MEMBERS                  PAGE     2 

 

 

 

 

ADOPTED AND APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF DAPHNE, 

ALABAMA on this _______ day of __________, 2012. 

 

 

       ____________________________________ 

       Cathy S. Barnettte, 

       Council President 

        

 

 

_____________________________________  

Bailey Yelding, Jr., 

       Mayor 

        

ATTEST: 

 

_____________________________ 

David L. Cohen 

City Clerk, MMC 

 
 

157



 CITY OF DAPHNE 
 
 ORDINANCE NO. 2012-10          
  
 AN ORDINANCE AMENDING ORDINANCE 2008-17 / 

THE SALARY OF THE MAYOR 

  
 

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF DAPHNE, 

ALABAMA, TO AMEND ORDINANCE 2008-17 TO READ AS FOLLOWS: 

 

SECTION ONE: 

 

That the salary of the Mayor of the City of Daphne, commencing November 5, 2012, shall be 

and the same is hereby fixed at Seventy-Five Thousand Dollars ($75,000.00) annually, to be paid in 

twenty-four (24) equal installments on the first and second payroll of each month. 

 

SECTION TWO: 

 

That as additional compensation, the Mayor shall be entitled to reimbursement for use of 

his/her personal vehicle at the rate of reimbursement according to the current Internal Revenue rate. 

 

SECTION THREE: 

 

That the Mayor shall be entitled to all health care benefits, which may be provided for full-

time employees of the City of Daphne, and to a cell phone. 

 

SECTION FOUR: 

 

That any Ordinance setting forth the salary of the Mayor is hereby repealed to the extent that 

the provisions of such Ordinance conflict with the provisions hereof. 

 

SECTION FIVE: 

 

That this Ordinance shall become effective upon adoption and publication as required by law, 

and shall continue in force and effect until repealed by action of the Council. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

158



 
ORDINANCE  2012-10                           SALARY OF MAYOR                            PAGE    2 

 

 

 

 

ADOPTED AND APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

DAPHNE, ALABAMA on this ________ day of _________, 2012. 

 

 

       ____________________________________ 

       Cathy S. Barnette,    

       Council President 

        

 

                                                                                    _____________________________________ 

Bailey Yelding, Jr., 

       Mayor 

        

ATTEST: 

 

_____________________________ 

David L. Cohen 

City Clerk, MMC 
 

159


	AGENDA.pdf
	City Roll Call.pdf
	Council Minutes - January 17.pdf
	Council Minutes - Amended January 3rd Minutes.pdf
	Proclamation - Arbor Day.pdf
	Reporting of Standing Committees.pdf
	Public Safety Minutes.pdf
	Ordinance Committee January 11, 2012  Minutes a.pdf
	Pubilc Works - Notice of Action Taken.pdf
	Beautification Minutes.pdf
	Special Reports.pdf
	Downtown Redevelopment Minutes - January 23.pdf
	Industrial Development Board January 23 Minutes.pdf
	Backup to IDB Minutes.pdf
	Planning Commission Minutes.pdf
	Set Public Hearing Date Info.pdf
	Library Board November 3 2011.pdf
	Library Board Minutes December 1 2011.pdf
	Library Board Minutes January 6, 2012.pdf
	Utility Board Minutes - APPROVED Dec 2011.pdf
	Mayors Report.pdf
	Parade Permits.pdf
	ABC License.pdf
	Mayors Report - Facility Services Agreement.pdf
	City Attorneys and Department Head Report.pdf
	RESOLUTION - ORDINANCES - DIVIDER PAGE.pdf
	2012-04 - RES - Supports HB713 and SB 534 - Italian Heritage - FINAL.pdf
	2012-05 - RES - Street Map Revisions.pdf
	Backup to 2012-05 - RES.pdf
	2012-01 - ORD - Transitional Duty - WCOrdinance6 1.pdf
	2012-02 - ORD - FEMA 140 Lakeview Loop Acq  Cash Match Ord.pdf
	2012-04 - ORD - City Hall HVAC-Fire Alarm.pdf
	2012-05 - ORD - USS Alabama - Community Contribution.pdf
	2012-05 - Backup - ORD.pdf
	2012-06 - ORD - Non-profitFunding2 1.pdf
	2012-07 - ORD - SALARY FOR COUNCIL MEMBERS - 2012 - Option A - Health & Cola.pdf
	2012-08 - ORD - SALARY FOR COUNCIL MEMBERS - 2012 - Option B - Health.pdf
	2012-09 - ORD - SALARY FOR COUNCIL MEMBERS - 2012 - Option C - COLA.pdf
	2012-10 - ORD - SALARY FOR MAYOR.pdf

